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VIA EMAIL: RFPQuestions@hcpf.state.co.us 
 
October 28, 2013 
 
Suzanne Brennan, Medicaid Director 
Colorado Department of Healthcare Policy and Financing (HCPF) 
1570 Grant Street 
Denver, CO 80203-1818 
 
RE: Medicaid Adult Dental Draft RFP Feedback 
 
Dear Ms. Brennan: 
 
The Colorado Dental Association (CDA) represents nearly 80% of Colorado’s licensed dentists with a 
membership of over 3,000 dental professionals.  The CDA is dedicated to improving the quality, 
availability, affordability and utilization of oral healthcare services.  
 
On behalf of the dental profession, the CDA wishes to offer a few comments and suggestions concerning 
the draft Dental Coverage RFP. Specific comments on the RFP are outlined below. 
 
Substantive Comments 
 
Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.1.6.3.2.1.4 Page 13 
of 59 

A ten minute wait time for a dentist on a Provider Service 
Line could be problematic, especially if the provider is 
seeking clarification needed to treat a patient who is 
waiting in the office for care. Could incentives be offered 
to reduce this wait time? It is not clear if the “Average 
Telephone Responsiveness” incentive in Section 5.12.2.4 
(Page 45 of 59) is related to the Provider Service Line in 
Section 5.1.6.3.2.1.4.  

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.2.5.2 Page 24 
of 59 

One of the positive experiences providers report with the 
current Medicaid program is Medicaid’s current payment 
schedule. Payments are generally made within 5 business 
days, and are made by direct deposit into the provider’s 
bank account. Providers would like to see the payment 
process offered by a Contractor meet or exceed that 
currently offered by the Department. 15 days for payment 
is substantially longer than the current timeframe for 
provider payment. Could the Department consider 
incentivizing better performance for payments for  

 



Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
providers (__% within 5 days) in Section 5.12 on page 44 
of 59? Could the Contractor be required to offer direct 
deposit as an option for providers to maintain current 
standards? Further, RFPs in other states often include 
language that requires the Contractor to “prepare 
payments on at least a weekly basis, unless an alternative 
payment schedule is approved by the Department.” 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.2.7 Page 24 
of 59 

Who is considered a specialist under this section? The 
term “specialist” is not defined, and it is not clear whether 
this section is intended to apply to medical specialists, 
dental specialists, or others. Enrollees should be able to 
access certain dental specialists (e.g., pediatric dentists) 
without a referral. Also, this section seems to potentially 
conflict with Section 5.3.3.1 on page 25 of 59, which says 
that “each Enrollee shall be permitted to obtain covered 
services from any dentist or dental specialist in the 
Contractor’s network accepting new clients.” Could the 
Department clarify the specialist referral language? 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.3 Page 24 
of 59 

It is not clear in the RFP how provider enrollment is to be 
handled. Does the Department plan to maintain the 
provider enrollment functions or will that be delegated to 
the Contractor? If delegated to the Contractor, could 
language be added to the RFP (and perhaps even an 
incentive offered) requiring the Contractor to streamline 
the paperwork for provider enrollment as much as 
feasible? The difficulty of the provider enrollment process 
is a reason often cited by providers for not participating in 
the Medicaid network. The RFP should also clearly 
specify that the Department retains ownership of the 
provider network, if that is still the Department’s intent. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.3 Page 24 
of 59 

If a Contractor will be handling provider enrollment, 
could they be required to credential dentists by specialty 
(collect and verify information on specialty degrees and 
certifications)? Could the Contractor also be required to 
provide information on the dentist’s specialty in the 
Provider Directory available to enrollees both online and 
in print? 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.3 Page 24 
of 59 

Section 5.3 should probably reiterate the language from 
SB13-242 stating that the “contracting entity is prohibited 
from requiring dental providers to participate in any other 
public or private program or to accept any other insurance 
products as a condition of participating as a dental 
provider.” In addition, similar state RFPs also include 
language specifying that providers are not required to 
accept Medicaid reimbursement amounts for services 



Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
provided under other benefit plans operated by the 
Contractor. Sample language that could be used in the 
RFP is: “The provider must accept Medicaid 
reimbursement amounts for services provided under the 
agreement between the provider and Contractor to 
enrollees, but the provider shall not be required to accept 
Medicaid reimbursement amounts for services provided to 
persons who are covered under another health plan 
operated or administered by the Contractor.” 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

New 5.3.3.2 Page 25 
of 59 

The RFP should clearly outline how non covered services 
should be handled by Medicaid enrollees and providers. 
We suggest the following language as adapted from 
Tennessee’s February 2013 RFP for Dental 
Administrative and Management Services: 
“Enrollees shall be permitted to pay out of pocket to 
access services not covered through the Medicaid benefit 
plan if the following conditions are met: 

a. The dental provider must inform the enrollee that 
the service(s) is(are) not covered prior to providing 
the service and have the enrollee acknowledge the 
information.  

b. If the enrollee still requests the non covered 
service, the provider shall obtain such 
acknowledgment in writing prior to rendering the 
service. 

Guidance for providers on how to address instances where 
the patient exceeds their annual maximum would also be 
useful. If the patient exceeds the annual maximum 
allowance for services under Medicaid and wishes to 
proceed with treatment by paying out of pocket, will they 
be allowed to pay out of pocket and continue care with the 
same provider? For example, if the patient has exceeded 
their annual max by having multiple extractions 
performed under their Medicaid benefits in a fiscal year, 
would they be permitted to sign an agreement with their 
provider and proceed with having a denture made by 
paying out of pocket even though they have exhausted 
their annual maximum? Failing to make provision for 
these situations can force an interruption in care (e.g., in 
the example above, forcing a patient to potentially live for 
months without teeth affecting nutrition and health) or 
force the patient to seek the ongoing care from a different 
provider who does not accept Medicaid, disrupting the 
patient-provider relationship. To address this situation, 
Medicaid could use language requiring provider 



Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
disclosures similar to the sample language provided for 
non covered services above. Distinctions could also be 
made in policies between children and adults if required 
for compliance. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

New 5.3.3.2 Page 25 
of 59 

The RFP does not currently address how billing of 
alternate benefits will be addressed when two or more 
clinically-acceptable dental services are available to 
satisfactorily address the same dental condition (e.g., 
using an amalgam or composite dental filling on a 
posterior tooth). While Medicaid intends to only pay for 
the less expensive procedure as indicated in stakeholder 
discussions, would providers be prohibited from billing 
(or accused of fraud) for billing an alternate/lesser 
procedure code and accepting the lesser reimbursement? 
Policies for billing alternate benefits should be clearly 
addressed with the Contractor in the RFP.  If appropriate, 
the Contractor could be required to write policies on 
which alternate benefits may be billed under a particular 
code and submit the policy for review and approval by the 
Department. The final policy should be made available to 
providers in the Provider Manual or accompanying policy 
manual. The intent of this policy would be to allow 
maximum flexibility to providers in billing clinically-
acceptable alternate dental procedures. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.4.6 Page 30 
of 59 

The permissible reasons for provider terminations should 
be outlined in the RFP in more detail or the Contractor 
should be required to write a formal policy outlining all 
the legitimate reasons why a provider may be terminated 
for review and approval by the Department. The 
contracting entity should allow participation by any dental 
provider who meets industry-accepted quality standards 
and is willing to agree to the Medicaid plan contract. 
While, the contracting entity should be allowed to exclude 
any provider who has a history of fraudulent billing or 
licensure violations, the Contractor should not be allowed 
to terminate providers for providing a high volume of care 
alone.  

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.6.1.4 Page 34 
of 59 

The provider’s email address should not be made 
available to the public. If emails are included in the 
Provider Directory, they should be optional and providers 
should be given the option of providing a “directory email 
address” for public use and a private email address for 
newsletters and other provider correspondence. It may be 
more appropriate to give the provider the option to include 
a website address in the directory, where the provider 



Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
could list a public email if they choose. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.9.2.1 Page 38 
of 59 

The RFP should include a requirement that claims denials 
be reviewed and approved by a U.S. or Colorado licensed 
dentist. While most benefit plans do not have dentists 
review claims approvals, requiring a dentist to review 
claims denials is a common industry practice and can 
potentially help reduce the number of appeals and 
reconsiderations requested. While a dentist review of a 
reconsideration seems to be currently required in Section 
5.9.4.1.2.3 (page 41 of 59), it does not appear to be a 
requirement for initial denials. A requirement that initial 
claims denials be reviewed and approved by a U.S. or 
Colorado licensed dentist should be added. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.9.2.3.1.3 Page 39 
of 59 

Allowing 2 days for an expedited/emergency prior 
authorization review is problematic. There needs to be 
another mechanism added to the RFP for prior approval or 
post evaluation review for emergency situations. In true 
emergencies where the patient’s “life or health is in 
jeopardy” or the patient is in “several pain,” 2 days is far 
too long and could expose the state, provider and 
Contractor to liability.  

 
Technical Comments 
 

Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

2.1.1.23 Page 4 
of 59 

This definition of Medical Appropriateness or Medically 
Appropriate references the “Connecticut Medicaid 
Program regulations.” It should probably instead refer to 
Colorado.  

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

3.2 Page 6 
of 59 

Section 3.2.1 describes Medicaid dental coverage for 
adults. Section 3.2.2 described CHP+ dental coverage for 
children. Should a section be added discussing existing 
Medicaid dental coverage for children? A description of 
current Medicaid dental coverage for children seems to be 
omitted from the current draft. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

3.2.4 Page 6 
of 59 

The bill language of SB13-242 did not specify an annual 
maximum coverage limit for the Medicaid adult dental 
benefit. The $1,000 annual maximum was an assumption 
in the fiscal note associated with the bill. The draft RFP 
should probably clarify that the fiscal note assumptions 
were the source of this number, not the statutory language. 
Also, in stakeholder discussions, Department leadership 
has routinely stated that the $1,000 annual maximum has 
not been finalized. Given its inclusion in this document, is 
the annual maximum now finalized at $1,000? 



Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.2.1.3 Page 21 
of 59 

The RFP currently does not clearly state that the 
Department retains responsibility for determining rates 
and the benefit plan design, as mandated in SB13-242. 
This subsection may provide an opportunity for that 
statement, e.g. “Rates and benefit plan design are 
determined by the Department and shall be subject to 
change….” 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.2.1.8 Page 22 
of 59 

Is there enough flexibility to add other programs should 
future need arise (for example, if the Department were to 
be assigned administration of the Old Age Pension dental 
benefit at some point by the legislature)? What would be 
the state’s process for adding administration of another 
benefit? Would that involve a contract addendum? Should 
the process be detailed further in this section? 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.2.5.2 Page 23 
of 59 

The term “member” is not defined in the definitions 
section of the RFP. The term “client” or “enrollee” seems 
to be used elsewhere in the document in this context, and 
should perhaps be used here for consistency.  

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.3.6 Page 25 
of 59 

Other states’ RFPs often require the following language 
regarding network deficiencies: “If the Contractor’s 
network is unable to provide necessary, medical services 
covered under the contract to a particular enrollee, the 
Contractor must adequately and timely cover these 
services out of network for the enrollee, for as long as the 
Contractor is unable to provide them. Out of network 
providers must coordinate with the Contractor with 
respect to payment. The Contractor must ensure that cost 
to the enrollee is no greater than in would be if the 
services were furnished within the network.” Colorado 
should consider adding this requirement for network 
deficiencies to ensure appropriate access for enrollees. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.4 Page 26 
of 59 

Given technological advancements, many dentists seek 
information on benefit plans via the internet. The 
Contractor should be required to have a website for 
providers that meets the following specifications: 
“The Contractor shall have available an up-to-date web-
site dedicated to Colorado’s Medicaid dental program that 
shall include an easy to locate provider page which 
includes at least the following information:   
(1) Information on how to apply to become a participating 
provider; 
(2) Current Provider Manual; 
(3) Current Dental Fee Schedule; 
(4) Program policies and procedures; 
(5) Procedures for obtaining Prior Authorizations; 



Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
(6) Printable provider education materials; 
(7) Schedule of upcoming provider trainings; 
(8) Provider newsletters; 
(9) Procedures for electronic billing; 
(10) Information about the Peer Review Committee; and 
(11) Call Center hours of operation and contact numbers. 
The web-site shall be available for Department approval at 
least one (1) month prior to the commencement of claims 
processing and be available on the internet two (2) weeks 
prior to the commencement of claims processing.”  

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.4.2.1.1.2 Page 29 
of 59 

It is implied but not clearly required that the Contractor 
have an electronic billing system. Electronic billing 
should be available from any Contractor selected and 
providers should be encouraged to use this system. The 
following language could be added to address this 
requirement: “The Contractor shall maintain an electronic 
data processing system for Claims payment and 
processing and shall implement an electronic billing 
system for interested Participating Dental Providers. All 
Participating Dental Providers should be strongly 
encouraged and provided the training necessary to submit 
their claims electronically. The Contractor or any entities 
acting on behalf of the Contractor shall not charge 
providers for filing claims electronically.”  

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.4.2.1.5 Page 29 
of 59 

The Contractor should be required to update the Provider 
Manual on a regular basis. Though the RFP requires that 
the manual be “up-to-date,” there is no specific timeline 
for updates, which hinders accountability. Could language 
be added requiring that the Provider Manual be updated 
and providers notified “within 90 days of any change to 
policy outlined in the manual.” Otherwise, perhaps there 
could be a more general requirement that the Provider 
Manual be updated at least every year to ensure the 
content stays current. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.4.3.5 Page 30 
of 59 

The RFP currently requires that the Provider Newsletter 
be delivered by mail. Given technological advancements, 
should Contractor be allowed the option of delivering the 
newsletter by email for those providers that choose to opt-
in to email delivery? Email delivery should not be 
required of providers, but it would be a good cost saving 
option to offer the vendor. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.4.5 Page 30 
of 59 

This section seems to duplicate Section 5.3.6 on page 25 
of 59 at least in part. Could these sections be combined? 

Medicaid Dental 5.5 Page 31 Are there any requirements that could be imposed on the 



Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

of 59 Contractor to help streamline eligibility transfers between 
Medicaid and CHP+ for kids? 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.6 Page 32 
of 59 

Given technological advancements, many patients seek 
information on benefit plans via the internet (many 
patients will actually enroll in their health plan online now 
through Connect for Health Colorado). As such, the 
Contractor should be required to have a website for 
enrollees that meets the following specifications: 
“The Contractor shall have available an up-to-date web-
site dedicated to Colorado’s Medicaid dental program that 
shall include an easy to locate page for enrollees which 
includes at least the following information:   
(1) A description of services provided including 
limitations, exclusions and out-of-network use; 
(2) Enrollee Handbook including provider directory; 
(3) Call Center hours of operation and contact numbers; 
(4) Copay information (if applicable); 
(5) Transportation assistance; 
(6) Translation assistance; 
(7) Printable education material specific to enrollees, 
(8) Information on grievances and appeals, and 
(9) On-line search, by address or zip code and specialty, to 
locate the network dentists nearest to the enrollee. 
The web-site shall be available for Department approval at 
least one (1) month prior to the commencement of claims 
processing and be available on the internet two (2) weeks 
prior to the commencement of claims processing.”  

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.9.3.1.5 Page 40 
of 59 

The acronym RCCO is not defined for those not familiar 
with Colorado specific organizations. We assume this 
refers to Colorado’s Regional Care Collaborative 
Organizations, which, by and large, have not addressed 
dental care within the model to date. Given the exclusion 
of dental from most RCCOs at this time, the Department 
may also want to consider the current applicability of this 
requirement. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.10 Page 42 
of 59 

No description or detail is provided under this subheading 
making feedback difficult. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.14.2.2 Page 47 
of 59 

Will the Contractor provide quarterly data/reports that are 
available to the public addressing:  
• the average PMPM cost,  
• the value of claims paid by quarter by age group,  
• the number of procedures provided by quarter and age,  
• the number of  clients served by quarter and age group,  
• the percentage utilization by age group,  



Document Name Section # Page # Question/Comment 
• the enrollee eligibility types,  
• the number of units of each dental code provided and 

cost,  
• the number of providers enrolled,  
• the number of reimbursed services delivered by each 

provider,  
• the reimbursement amounts to each provider,  
• the number of clients served by each provider,  
• the average cost per visit for each provider, and  
• the provider types by location?  
This data is currently provided by the Department and 
should continue to be provided by the Contractor or 
Department. There is no information in the RFP as to 
whether data required from the Contractor will be made 
available to the public. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.15.3.1.6 Page 52 
of 59 

The RFP requires the Contractor to notify enrollees if a 
Closeout period is entered. The same notification is not 
currently extended to providers. Providers should be 
notified of a Contractor closeout. 

Medicaid Dental 
Coverage Draft 
RFP Release 

5.17.3 Page 55 
of 59 

No description or detail is provided under this subheading 
making feedback difficult. 

 
 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
The CDA appreciates the Departments proactive approach in working to ensure appropriate and 
effective parameters for the Contractor selected to administer the adult and children’s Medicaid 
dental program.  We hope that our comments are productive and beneficial and will help the 
further improve the program.  We appreciate your consideration of these comments.  Please 
contact us if we can provide further clarification on any of the comments or suggestions offered 
in this document. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Quinn Dufurrena, DDS 
Executive Director, Colorado Dental Association 


